










 

 

 

 

Ms Caroline Pidgeon 

The Chair of the Committee 

City Hall 

The Queenswalk 

London 

SE1 2AA 

 

Dear Ms Pidgeon, 

I  have  been  asked  to  share my  thoughts  and  recommendations  following my  company’s  recent 
experience of  the Compulsory  Purchase Order process. Our business was one of many  forced  to 
vacate premises on Dean Street in November 2009.  

Below is  a list of the specific issues that we and others faced, together with recommendations that 
we believe would make the system easier, clearer, more efficient and, above all, less stressful!  

Before we deal with specifics  though,  I would  like  to bring  to your attention a more general  issue 
with  respect  to  the  perceived  attitude  of  TFL  towards  the  businesses  affected,  which  we  felt 
compounded  all  the other difficulties  that we  faced  throughout  the process.  It was,  in  fact, only 
when  the most  senior  individuals within TFL, The Mayors Office and CrossRail became personally 
involved in our “campaign for fair compensation” that we finally felt like we were being listened to, 
and the atmosphere seemed to change.  

It  is worth  remembering  that,  in  the vast majority of  cases,  the  companies being  forced  to move 
were more  than  happy  trading  in  their  existing  premises,  and  that  the move  constituted  a  huge 
financial, logistical and emotional upheaval for all of them. In some cases the challenges this posed 
were insurmountable, and businesses that had been successfully trading for decades were forced to 
close. A  little more obvious awareness of the  impact on businesses from TFL, at every stage of the 
process, would have been greatly appreciated and would have gone some way to transforming the 
atmosphere surrounding the upheaval.  

 

• Issue  ‐ The three month notice period 
Imagine the logistics involved in moving a family home and multiply this ten‐fold. This is the 
challenge  faced  for all  the companies  trying  to  find  suitable new premises and organise a 
move within a busy part of Soho  in  just three months. Even  if there  is an awareness that a 
CPO may be  served, businesses have  their hands  tied  in  terms of  securing a new premise 
until they receive a formal ‘Notice to Treat’. 
 

Recommendation – The notice period should be increased to at least six months to give all 
the businesses affected a more realistic amount of time with which to arrange their move.  



 
• Issue – Bland, impersonal, unhelpful and unclear communication from TFL.  

Businesses were  unable  to  get  a  satisfactory  response  from  TFL when we  raised  certain 
issues with them, and on more than one occasion were told they were ‘too busy’ to provide 
a detailed  response. There  seemed  to be a  complete  lack of urgency on  their part, and a 
total  disregard  for  the  extra  stress  and  strain  that  their  slow,  seemingly  disinterested 
communications were having on all businesses. 

Recommendation – There should be a named individual(s) within TFL who is responsible for 
liaising with the companies throughout the process. In addition there should also be a much 
quicker escalation process, so if and when issues arise, they can be brought to the attention 
of decision makers without a prolonged campaign being required. 
 

• Issue – Confusion over the way in which the compensation is calculated. 
Our claim was submitted by a highly reputable firm of surveyors yet the original offer made 
to  us  represented  just  24%  of  our move  costs.  This  situation was  experienced  by  other 
businesses  in  a  similar  position.  We  mounted  a  “campaign  for  fair  compensation”  and 
eventually  the  offer was  substantially  increased  and  agreement  reached. Why  is  such  a 
battle  needed?  Why  is  the  formula  not  clearer  and  presented  in  simple  terms  to  the 
companies impacted prior to the move?  
 

Recommendation – It should be spelt out to companies in plain English what the formula for 
working out their compensation is going to be, and the whole process should be made much 
more transparent;  
 

a)  The valuation should be carried out by an  independent body, not TFL, and the 
calculations by which that figure is reached should be clearly explained. 
 

b)  There  should  then be a process  in place whereby  that  figure  can be appealed 
and,  if  necessary,  recalculated.  This  would  help  ensure  that  the  valuation  is 
accurate, and  that both parties are  satisfied  that  it  isn’t weighted  in  favour of 
one or the other. Of course TFL shouldn’t foot the bill for companies looking to 
profit  from  the  move.  Equally,  businesses  should  feel  confident  that  the 
valuation is fair, accurate and impartial and that they are going to be in no worse 
financial state than before.  

 
• Issue – The fact that compensation was paid retrospectively, three months after our move 

date and six months after the compulsory purchase order was served, placed a huge strain 
on  cash  flow.  Small  businesses  are  not  awash with  cash  and  it  seems  unreasonable  that 
businesses are expected to finance the move and then argue for fair compensation.  
 

Recommendation  –  Use  an  independent  third  party  organisation  to  estimate  the 
compensation due, and then pay a reasonable proportion of this compensation  in advance 
to assist cash flow (we suggest 60%).  
 
Of course  this payment would be on  the condition  that  it would be repaid unless detailed 
expense claims are submitted. The outstanding balance would then be paid at the end of the 
process. 
 

• Issue  – Dealing with  the move  in  such  a  short  space  of  time meant  that  resources  that 
should  have  been  used  to  help  keep  our  business  operating  effectively  throughout  a 
recession were being diverted to help the moving process, and then later, to drive the fight 
for fair compensation. 



 

Recommendation – More practical assistance could have been provided to help companies 
with  the  logistics  of  the move.  Agents  to  source  properties  and  legal  advisors  could  be 
provided as part of a package of services. 
 

I  hope  you  find  this  evaluation  of  our  experience  helpful,  and  that  at  least  some  of  our 
recommendations are  taken on board. The compulsory purchase process will always place a huge 
amount of pressure and stress on business owners and will continue to pose an enormous challenge 
to all those involved, and therefore the more that can be done to ease the strain for those affected 
the better. 

I would be more than happy to come and meet with you in person to discuss the issues raised in this 
letter in more detail, and if you would like any further feedback in writing then do not hesitate to let 
me know.  

 
Yours sincerely,   

 
 
 

Mark Gregory 

Managing Director, PHA Media  

 


